ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWMM TTEE
February 26, 2014
8:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Vice Chair
Senator Bert Stedman

Senat or Charlie Huggins

Senat or Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 139

"An Act increasing the base student allocation used in the
formula for state funding of public education; repealing the
secondary st udent conpet ency exani nati on and rel at ed
requirenents; relating to high school course credit earned
t hrough assessnent; relating to a college and career readiness
assessnment for secondary students; relating to charter school
application appeals and program budgets; relating to residenti al
school applications; increasing the stipend for boardi ng schoo

students; extending unenploynment contributions for the Al aska
techni cal and vocational education program relating to earning
high school credit for conpletion of vocational education
courses offered by institutions receiving technical and
vocational education program funding; relating to education tax
credits; making conform ng anendnents; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 12
Procl ai m ng February to be Public Education Month.

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 139
SHORT TI TLE: EDUCATI ON:  FUNDI NG TAX CREDI TS/ PROGRAMS

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- February 26, 2014



SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 24/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 24/ 14 (S) EDC, FIN

02/ 03/ 14 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 03/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 03/ 14 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 10/ 14 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 10/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 10/ 14 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 24/ 14 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 24/ 14 (S) -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

02/ 26/ 14 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

DI ANE BLUVER, Comm ssi oner

Depart ment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnment (DQOL)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information related to the
Techni cal Vocational Education Program (TVEP) conponent of SB
139.

WANETTA AYERS, Director

Di vi sion of Business Partnerships

Depart ment of Labor and Workf orce Devel opnment

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information related to the
Techni cal Vocational Education Program (TVEP) conmponent of SB
139.

M CHAEL HANLEY, Comm ssi oner

Depart ment of Education

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information related to the
Techni cal Vocation Educational Program (TVEP) conponent of SB
139.

FRED VI LLA, Associate Vice President

University of Al aska System - Statew de (UA

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information related to the
Techni cal Vocational Education Program (TVEP) conponent of SB
139.

JOHN PUGH, Chancel | or
University of Al aska - Sout heast (UAS)

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- February 26, 2014



Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information related to the
Techni cal Vocational Education Program (TVEP) conponent of SB
139.

Rl CK CAULFI ELD, Provost

Uni versity of Al aska - Sout heast (UAS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information related to the
Techni cal Vocation Educational Program (TVEP) conponent of SB
139.

CHRI S REI TAN, Superi ntendent

Galena City School District

Gal ena, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information about Techni cal
Vocati on Educational Program (TVEP) fund recipients.

CHERYL EDENSHAW Director

Al aska (Kotzebue) Technical Center

Kot zebue, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Provided information about Techni cal
Vocati on Educational Program (TVEP) fund recipients.

FRED ESPCSI TO, Director

Al aska Vocational Technical Center (AVTC

Sewar d, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information about Techni cal
Vocati on Educational Program (TVEP) fund recipients.

DOUG WALRATH, Director

Nort hwest ern Al aska Career and Technical Center (NACTEC)

Nonme, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Provided information about Techni cal
Vocat i onal Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients.

KURT KUHNE, Executive Director

Yuut Elitnaurviat, Inc.

Peopl e's Learning Center

Bet hel , Al aska

PCOSI TION  STATEMENT: Pr ovi ded i nformation about Techni cal
Vocati onal Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients.

STEVEN ANGASAN, I nstructor

Sout hwest Al aska Vocati on and Education Center (SAVEC)
Ki ng Sal nron and Naknek, Al aska

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- February 26, 2014



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information about Techni cal
Vocati on Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients.

KAREN CEDZO, Devel opnent and Coordi nation

Partners for Progress in Delta, Inc.

Del ta Career Advancenent Center (DCAC)

Delta, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information about Techni cal
Vocati onal Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients.

CARMVEN FRANCHI NO, Director of Operations

Amundsen Educati onal Center

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Pr ovi ded i nformation about Techni cal
Vocati on Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients.

JUDI WALGENBACH, Program Director

Amundsen Educati onal Center

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Pr ovi ded i nformation about Techni cal
Vocat i onal Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients.

CHARLENE ARNESON, President

Chugach School Board

Chugach, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Provided information about Techni cal
Vocat i onal Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients.

STEVE BRADSHAW Superi nt endent

Sitka School District

Sitka, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information about Techni cal
Vocat i onal Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients.

CHARLES EDWARDSON, Wor kforce Devel opnent Director

Sout hern Sout heast Al aska Techni cal Education Center

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TION  STATEMENT: Pr ovi ded i nformation about Techni cal
Vocati onal Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8: 00: 07 AM

CHAIR GARY STEVENS <called the Senate Education Standing
Committee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Gardner, Stednman, Huggins, Dunleavy, and
Chair Stevens.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- February 26, 2014



SB 139- EDUCATI ON:  FUNDI NG TAX CREDI TS/ PROGRANMS

8: 00: 32 AM
CHAI R STEVENS announced that the only order of business would be
SB 139, specifically Section 17. He said the bill would be set
aside after invited testinony. He added that SCR 12 woul d not be
heard today.

8:01:56 AM

DI ANE BLUMER, Conm ssioner, Departnent of Labor and Wbrkforce
Devel opnent (DOL), Juneau, Al aska, provided information related
to the Technical Vocation Educational Program (TVEP) conponent
of SB 139. She said that DOL has |ong recognized that college is
not the only avenue and nany jobs do not require a four-year
degree. She stated that the bill wll reauthorize the TVEP until
2024 and it will expand dual credit options.

She explained that there are two new conponents in the
Governor's bill; one is the extension and the other is an
addition to current |anguage performance natrixes that are set
out for the TVEP recipient. A new addition allows for dual
credits and another reduces the funding amount by 20 percent if
the recipient is not neeting performnce neasures.

8:04:56 AM

CHAI R STEVENS asked how satisfied Conm ssioner Bluner is wth
the current program as far as how the noney is being spent and
t he perfornmance of the various agenci es.

COWM SSI ONER BLUMER stated that the departnent believes in
regional training centers. It recognizes that there are many
prograns that do a fantastic job. It is time critical to train
youth for the job market and for future large projects. The
departnment recognizes that there are a few areas where the
performance neasures can be enhanced. She noted that the
depart ment is wor ki ng Wi th t he Governor's of fice to
strengthening those areas in the regulation process. She
concluded that she is confortable with the program

CHAI R STEVENS voi ced concerns about non-performng entities. He
requested nore information about re-directing funds if an agency
is not performng and how that is determ ned.

8:06: 35 AM
COWM SSI ONER BLUVER expl ained that currently the departnent is
not allowed to redirect funds because the program is formnula

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- February 26, 2014



funded. The departnent has the obligation to collect the data,
but currently has no recourse regarding funding. The bil
provides that DOL can reduce the grant by 20 percent for the
foll ow ng year.

CHAI R STEVENS asked what the performance marks are.

COWM SSI ONER BLUMER deferred to Wanetta Ayers to answer. She
said it is not always easy to collect the data.

CHAI R STEVENS asked Ms. Ayers to respond.

8:08: 07 AM

WANETTA AYERS, Director, Division of Business Partnerships,
Department of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent, Juneau, Al aska,
provided information related to the Technical Vocat i onal
Education Program (TVEP) conponent of SB 139. She began by
describing how the division works to collect data related to
ot her funds than TVEP where they currently have nore authority.
For exanple, in the State Training and Enpl oynent Program (STEP)
a grantee is required to enter the individual record of a
trainee, including their nanme, address, and social security
nunber, which is not reported on an individual basis but
aggregated for that particular grantee and for the fund as a
whol e. She said there is not the sane flexibility under TVEP for
several reasons. First, a nunber of the grantees are affiliated
with school districts and have Fam |y Educational Rights Privacy

Act requirenents. In order to work around that | egal
restriction, those grantees can report as groups for the purpose
of funding. However, it prevents DOL from finding some of the

| ong-term outcone information, such as whether the students are
enpl oyed a year after their exit fromthe training, their wages,
and if they are enployed in an occupation related to their
trai ni ng.

She pointed out that SB 139 will provide recourse. Currently,
there is no recourse if the grantee cannot provide the

i nformation. The depart nment can wrk with the student
participation information TVEP reports to the budgeting process
and to group reporting and quarterly reports. It is an

i nconsi stent picture that |acks outcone information.

CHAI R STEVENS asked how much it costs per student and how many
peopl e get jobs. He questioned if that information can be sought
fromevery agency and group.

M5. AYERS replied not as it is currently structured.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- February 26, 2014



8:12: 06 AM
SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked for |anguage that would acconplish that
request .

M5. AYERS said it would be a sinple process by adding one
addi ti onal point under AS 23.15.835(e); adding item (8) to give
broader responsibility of the departnent to collect individual
records and information from the recipient to nmake it a
requi renent of receiving the funding. It puts it back on the
institutions to resolve the | egal privacy issues. She added that
DOL, through the Division of Business Partnerships and the
Research Analysis Section, deal wth a large volune of
personally identifiable information in the training processes
received from other grant recipients. She maintained that DCL
can resolve the privacy issues through a variety of neans, but
first it nmust have the authority to do so.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY commented that personal information does not
need to be used. He gave an exanple of a training institution
with 1,000 students and the appearance may be misleading as to
how many hours the students spend in a program and the actua
nunber may be very small. He would like to match funding with
specific outcones. He requested to know what is needed to
col | ect necessary dat a.

MS. AYERS agreed to provide that information.

8:14: 50 AM

CHAIR STEVENS reiterated his two questions: how nuch does it
costs per student and how many have jobs. He pointed out that
the answers do not require personal information. He stressed the
need to be accountable for noney spent.

He al so asked where the 20 percent goes after it is taken away
from underperform ng organizations. He inquired if DOL has the
ability to reallocate it.

M5. AYERS noted that a policy would be developed to address
redi stributing funds to the other recipients.

CHAI R STEVENS asked if the bill allows that.
M5. AYERS said it is an internal policy and not needed in
statute. The departnent issues advisories to the grantees that

are posted on the web site so that they will understand what the
process w Il be.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- February 26, 2014



8:16: 04 AM
SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked what is needed to ensure the noney
mat ches the traini ng dat a.

M5. AYERS said that is the direction the departnment wants to go.
She noted the departnment would like nore information about each
course that is offered, the credentials that are attained, the
nunber of student hours of student instruction, and enploynent
and wage outcones for the individual, but reported on an
institutional basis.

CHAI R STEVENS commented that workforce devel opnent is becom ng
nore crucial to the state and nati onw de.

8:17:43 AM

M CHAEL HANLEY, Comm ssioner, Departnent of Education, Juneau,
Al aska, provided information related to the Technical Vocation
Educati onal Program (TVEP) conponent of SB 139. He said that
TVEP is a partnership between the Departnent of Education and
Early Developnent (DEED) and the Departnent of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnment (DOL). He said that the accountability
conmponent requires an articulation agreenent that if the
entities receive the funds, they are offering dual credit
opportunities for students. It enhances a student's high schoo
career as well as career or wuniversity training. He concurred
with DOL's conmments.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY commented that some of the prograns are nore
i ndependent of a school district than others. The lines are
blurred between K-12 and post-secondary training. He asked how
the departnents can delineate those areas and trace where the
noney i s goi ng.

COWMWM SSI ONER HANLEY said he likes the fact that the lines are
blurred. Graduation is only a mark in tinme toward progress, but
not an end zone. The nonitoring of the students falls to the
DOL. He offered to work with DOL on the delineation of data for
future deci sions.

8:20: 38 AM

FRED VILLA, Associate Vice President, University of Al aska
System - Statew de (UA), Fairbanks, Al aska, provided information
related to the Technical Vocational Education Program (TVEP)
conponent of SB 139. He explained that UA allocates the TVEP
program from a consolidated distribution fromthe state. The 45
percent goes to UA and an additional 5 percent goes to the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- February 26, 2014



University of Alaska - Southeast (UAS). It is nmanaged as a
single allocation to initiate and enhance high priority
wor kf orce devel opnent prograns. The funding has to neet certain
criteria that align with the state, but include high denmand and
regional workforce needs, increased access, flexibility of
training, inprove persistence of educational processes, and has
col | aboration across the state. It is |ooking at high demand job
areas that provide economc developnent opportunities for
regions, but also career pathways that allow students to
transition from secondary schools, mlitary, and other wal ks of
life, into training prograns that can get them jobs. The
investments are across the university system and wuse a
conpetitive grant process within UA to neet regional needs, as
well as state needs. He noted that he has provided witten
t esti nony.

8:23:30 AM

SENATOR STEDMAN asked about UA' s nethodology for allocating
funds to the Southeast Region. He requested suggestions as to
how to allocate TVEP funds around the state to areas where there
is performance, and how to deal wth new incunbents wth
superior performance conpared to current participants.

MR. VILLA responded that perfornmance should reflect the center's
ability to provide prograns to neet the need of enployers. The
econonmi ¢ nodel that each TVEP recipient or center uses should
represent the level of funding and accountability nmeasures for
each center so it can be assessed for the service it provides
both regionally and to the state. The UA system has reporting
requirenents in the grant process that include the nunber of
students served by TVEP funds, whether there are external or
internal licensures or certifications and if they are awarded.
It also asks for information regarding outcones, distribution
and priorities based on the workforce investnent board's
priority industries, and career pathways for transitions for
students from secondary to post-secondary.

SENATOR STEDMAN asked about how new entrants are handled at UA
and for purposes of the bill.

8:26: 38 AM

MR. VILLA related that part of the investnent UA has had, has
been done when there is a regional training center that has
partnered with UA and has sought TVEP funding to get their
program goi ng. He gave an exanple where UA partnered with area
residents and the high school to support the devel opnent of the
Delta Career Advancenent Center, who nmade a presentation to

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- February 26, 2014



| egi sl ature and now receives TVEP funding. The challenge is to
define what the purpose is and whether the center has a regional
and statewi de m ssion, and assess accountability prior to state
investnment. Performance criteria are critical to naking that
deci si on.

He shared enrollnent costs of $560 per student, across 58
grants, in the UA system He said UA is working with DOL to
track graduates of the prograns. One of the fallacies about
graduates is if they conplete a program and go to work, but
don't go into the program of study, they do not count as being
enpl oyed by the industry. He gave an exanpl e.

8:30: 21 AM

CHAIR STEVENS noted the inportance of "getting a job equals
success." He asked about the 58 different grants and how many
regional training centers there are.

MR. VILLA explained that the UA system has accredited three
universities, one accredited comunity college, and thirteen
comunity canpuses, plus a nunber of small comrmunity-based
centers. There are 58 grants wthin 23 schools that have been
funded. One site nmay have a variety of prograns and be a
reci pient of several grants.

8:32:46 AM
SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if there is much duplication of prograns
in the various training centers.

MR. VILLA said there is sonme unnecessary duplication and sone
necessary duplication. For exanple, there are welding prograns
across the state due to economc opportunities and |obs.
Regional training centers, in partnership wth university
prograns, |everaged resources and faculty in order to nove the
prograns around the state where they were needed.

8:35:18 AM

SENATOR GARDNER said at UAS, 50 out of 60 participants are in
busi ness adm nistration. She did not think of that major as a
vocati onal area.

MR VI LLA deferred to Provost Caulfield to answer.

CHAI R STEVENS thanked M. Villa for his years of service to the
uni versity.

8:36: 25 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- February 26, 2014



JOHN PUGH, Chancellor, University of Al aska - Southeast, Juneau,
Al aska, provided information related to the Technical Vocation
Education Program (TVEP) conponent of SB 139. He introduced
hi nsel f.

RI CK CAULFI ELD, Provost, University of Al aska - Southeast (UAS),
Juneau, Al aska, provided information related to the Technical
Vocation Education Program (TVEP) conponent of SB 139. He
addressed Senator Gardner's question. He noted that tourism
devel opnment is a key part of the econonmy in Southeast Al aska and
UAS offers a full array of progranms. Wrkforce developnent is
offered at the non-credit l|evel and at the one-year |evel.
Career pathways are offered at the associate degree |evel and
baccal aureate |evel. Career pathways include technician-I|evel
positions and TVEP fundi ng.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if sone business admnistration classes
are not TVEP funded.

MR. CAULFI ELD sai d yes.
SENATOR GARDNER asked if TVEP-funded cl asses are uni que

VR. CAULFI ELD said t he cour ses of fered in busi ness
adm nistration are part of a career pathway that extends down
into high school. There are avenues where students can begin to
earn university credits at the high school l|evel and then cone
into certificate, associate degree, and baccal aureate prograns.
The TVEP funding goes to outreach for students to be able to get
into the career pathways, and university funding is provided for
t he degree prograns.

8:38: 56 AM

CHANCELLOR PUGH added that the TVEP grant was needed for an
outreach coordinator that worked wth industry in order to
expand the nunber of students in the associate program because
of the need for accounting technicians across the state.

SENATOR STEVENS asked for general comments about TVEP.

CHANCELLOR PUGH provided the history of the need for the bill.
A nunber of years ago, UAS did not receive its fair share of
TVEP funding, so Senator Elton amended the bill to include UAS
which would receive 5 percent of the funding. Chancellor Pugh
pointed out that in the last few years UAS has recei ved between
10 percent and 13 percent of the funding. He maintained that the
grant process is the best process to conpete for funding.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- February 26, 2014



He said he views all three of the UA canpuses as regional
training centers. He noted that the canpuses focus on |ocal and
regional needs. He said that TVEP funding has worked in many
ways to pilot progranms. A center receives a grant for three
years and then it nust "prove up" and provide its own funding
He opined that TVEP has been a very good program for the
university and has enabled it to start new prograns.

8:42: 42 AM

CHAIR STEVENS noted that the awarding of 45 percent of TVEP
funding to UA and 5 percent to UAS is not an inportant
di stinction because of the grant application process.

CHANCELLOR PUGH agreed that the 5 percent is not necessary due
to the conpetitive process.

8:43: 39 AM

MR.  CAULFI ELD commented that TVEP funding allows UA to be
responsive to needs that arise, such as in Ketchi kan where TVEP
funding has been used in the past year to develop an new, non-
credit maritime and mul ti-skilled wor ker program in
coll aboration with the shipyard and the Native community. It
shows the inportance of TVEP funding to be responsive to
i ndustry needs.

SENATOR STEDVAN agreed that the 5 percent allocation is
unnecessary. He voiced concern about funding outside of the 50
percent that goes to the university and suggested it be treated
the sane way with performance neasures in order to weed out
under perforners.

CHAI R STEVENS said it was a good point.

8:45: 48 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about differences in training demand and
j obs in Sout heast Al aska.

CHANCELLOR PUGH said maritinme prograns, such as shipping and
fishing, are unique to the area. There are 8,000 enployees in
the fishing industry in Southeast Alaska. There is a new
fisheries tech program which wll be distance delivered soon
Also, mning jobs are very inportant in the region. UAS has a
mning training center. The health care programin Sitka was the
first canpus to do a health information nmanagenent program and
coding specialist program Those prograns address statew de
needs.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- February 26, 2014



8:48: 28 AM
SENATOR HUGA NS noted there is a Job Corps site in Palner. He
asked if there is a simlar programin SE Al aska.

CHANCELLOR PUGH said there is not. The Ketchikan Indian
Corporation has a job center and there are two centers in Sitka.

8:.49: 26 AM

SENATOR STEDVAN commented that the Alaska Ship and Dry Dock,
owned by Vigor Alaska, is integrating with the university for
job training prograns. He opined that the maritime conponent is
inits incubation age.

CHANCELLOR PUGH said Vigor announced that within the next five
years 200 enployees will be needed and the university would be
the primary training center. He said that is what TVEP is about.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted a huge unenpl oynent problemin the U S. He
asked how the wuniversity dovetails with DO.L to address that
i ssue.

CHANCELLOR PUGH spoke of the mning program as a nethod of
enpl oying people. DOL |ooked at the unenployed in the region,
selected individuals to go to underground mning training, and
funded the program The university also worked with Gold Belt
and the Alaska Native Corporation to contact unenployed Al aska
Natives to engage in the mning training program In the
Ket chi kan area fornmer tinber enployees were contacted to train
and work in the shipyard.

CHAIR STEVENS w shed to discuss the issue further at another
time.

8:54:16 AM

CHRIS REITAN, Superintendent, Galena GCty School District,
Gal ena, Al aska, provided information about Technical Vocation
Educational Program (TVEP) fund recipients. He described how
Galena has wused TVEP funding. Wen the funding was first
available, it was wused for inplementing the aviation and
cosnetol ogy prograns. Since then its use has been expanded to
dual credit areas for high school students: construction trades,
avi ation, autonotive, conputer technology, health sciences, and
culinary arts. The focus has been for non-traditional high
school students to nove into the workforce or on to nore
trai ni ng.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -13- February 26, 2014



CHAI R STEVENS sai d he has been readi ng about 6-year high schools
with 2 years of vocational training followng a 4-year regular
curriculum He asked if that is what is occurring in Gal ena,

MR. REITAN said it was true to a degree. He gave exanples of
cosnetology and aviation as courses that are taken throughout
the duration of high school into a fifth year.

8:57.57 AM

CHAI R STEVENS noted one of the problens the departnment is having
is wth getting information regarding cost and placenent. He
asked M. Reitan to comment on the university as a nodel for
exiting old prograns and accepti ng new prograns.

MR. RElI TAN t hought it was appropriate. The focus in Galena is on
occupations that have job demand, and the prograns have to
adjust to fields that have a high enploynent rate.

CHAI R STEVENS voi ced appreciation for M. Reitan's comments and
wor K.

8:59:40 AM

CHERYL EDENSHAW Director, Al aska (Kotzebue) Technical Center,
Kot zebue, Al aska, provided information about Technical Vocation
Educational Program (TVEP) fund recipients. She discussed the
flexibility of the center to adjust to neet workforce needs that
arise. She said it is one of the center's strengths. She said
they would |like to develop even further to focus on quality and
excel within career pathways that are in demand in the region
and in the state.

CHAI R STEVENS said he was inpressed with the Kotzebue Techni cal
Center.

9:01: 15 AM

FRED ESPOSITO Director, Al aska Vocational Technical Center
(AVTC), Seward, Alaska, provided information about Techni cal
Vocation Educational Program (TVEP) fund recipients. He said
that AVTIC, a statewide program was an original recipient of
TVEP funding and the funds have becone integrated into AVTEC
operations. Oiginally, the funds were used to enhance prograns
t hat had been | acki ng in f undi ng for equi pnent and
accreditation. He noted that AVTEC uses school-wide results to
show the results of TVEP.

MR. ESPOSITO related that AVIEC has 18 certificate-level |ong-
termtraining prograns, as well as a |arge nunber of short-term

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -14- February 26, 2014



prograns. He listed programs in health, applied technol ogies,
such as welding and diesel and heavy equipnment nmechanics,
culinary arts, energy and building trades, constructi on,
refrigeration, information technology, and maritine prograns.
Al prograns are offered with the support of industry - an
i ndustry-based advisory conmttee. He said AVIEC has had
excellent results. In FY 2012, 86 percent of students entering
long-term training prograns conpleted them and 90 percent were
pl aced in training-related enpl oynment.

CHAI R STEVENS said he was famliar with Seward Center prograns
and facility. He comented that the maritine transportation
facility is remarkabl e.

MR. ESPCSI TO agreed that the AVTEC naritime program is unique,
the simulator is world class, and the staff are excellent. He
credited the staff and industry support for the success of the
program

9: 06: 26 AM
CHAI R STEVENS asked M. Esposito to comrent on the reduction of
20 percent funding for non-performng facilities.

MR. ESPCSITO did not think it was a concern to AVIEC s prograns
whose performance results are very good.

9:07: 03 AM
CHAI R STEVENS agreed that 90 percent placenent is remnarkable.

SENATOR GARDNER noted in AVTEC s denographics that 2 percent of
the students cone fromout of state.

MR. ESPOSI TO explained that sone students find AVTIEC on the
internet and have an interest in relocating to Al aska.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if those stay in Alaska after they finish
t he program

MR. ESPCSI TO said the majority of students that go through AVTEC
stay in Alaska. AVTEC does follow them and knows that nost of
them are enployed in training-related jobs.

CHAI R STEVENS t hanked M. Esposito.
9:08:31 AM

DOUG WALRATH, Director, Northwestern Al aska Career and Technica
Center (NACTEC), Nonme, Alaska, provided information about

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 15- February 26, 2014



Techni cal Vocational Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients.
He related that nost of the Center's students are high schoo
age, therefore he has a concern that the nmetrics that are being
used to neasure what they are intended to do. For exanple, the
nunber of trainees is easy to report, but the nunber of those
going to work within one year of training would exclude 79
percent of participants who were not hi gh school seniors.

He shared sone trends found at NACTEC since the onset of TVEP
five years ago. There was an increase of 64 percent in
enrollment, wup from 241 trainees. Nome and 15 sites in the
Bering Strait School District cane together to develop a
regional training center. Bering Strait School District provides
89 percent of the students that cone through NACTEC. There was
an amazing increase in the graduation rate from 32 percent in FY
08, when TVEP entered, to 61 percent in FY 13. He said he cross-
referenced the onset of TVEP funds with the unenploynent rate

whi ch decreased by 3 percent. He concluded that the funding is
making an inpact. He noted he has also provided witten
comment s.

CHAI R STEVENS asked for help determ ning what the right neasures
shoul d be. He thanked M. Walrath.

9:14: 26 AM

KURT  KUHNE, Executive Director, Yuut El i t naurvi at, I nc.,
People's Learning Center, Bethel, Alaska, provided information
about  Techni cal Vocat i onal Education Program (TVEP) fund
recipients. He said the Center's governance is made up of
industries who neet annually to prioritize training needs for
jobs wthin the region. He said they neet with DOL to try to
determ ne the neasures that adequately represent the good work
that is done. He noted differences between Bethel and None and
the difficulty in have the sanme neasures for both centers. He
said he has provided witten answers to the requested questions.

CHAI R STEVENS t hanked M. Kuhne.

9:16: 38 AM

STEVEN ANGASAN, Instructor, Southwest Al aska Vocational and
Education Center (SAVEC), King Salnmon and Naknek, Al aska,
provided information about Techni cal Vocat i onal Educati on
Program (TVEP) fund recipients. He said TVEP funding has been a
godsend to SAVEC. He noted that all training centers are
different and it would be difficult to develop neasures to fit
all. He agreed with the previous speaker. He said that Bethe

works with kids; he works with adults. He said SAVEC was the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -16- February 26, 2014



recipient of a federal grant for fisheries, maritinme, and others
industry training. He spoke of a three-year AVTEC grant for
internet. He testified in support of SB 139.

CHAI R STEVENS thanked M. Angasan for working with agencies to
nmeet the needs of his comunity.

9:20: 32 AM

KAREN CEDZO, Devel opnent and Coordi nation, Partners For Progress
in Delta, Inc., Delta Career Advancenent Center (DCAC), Delta

Al aska, provi ded i nformation about Techni cal Vocat i onal

Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients. She spoke in support
of continued TVEP funding provided for in SB 139 because the
board believes that the prograns offered by the funds are life
changi ng. She described the process for devel oping a consortium
to address the shortage of career and technical education needed
to neet job demands. She provided the history of the partnership
t hat devel oped the construction trades academnmy. The construction
trades instructor has been recognized by the Al aska Wrkforce
| nvest nent Board as Career Technical Educator of the year.

She expl ained how DCAC delivers its prograns. She noted they do
not issue degrees, but work with the university and the high
school who do. She gave exanples of needs net due to the annua
industry roundtable; CDL training, welding, conmputing, and
certified nurse aid. A goal is to focus on quality and address
needs as they appear. She provided an exanple of how the
university, career center, and school district work together.
She described the successes of the prograns. She concluded that
the career center is a good nodel for delivering cost efficient,
non-duplicating career and technical educational training in the
ar ea.

CHAI R STEVENS t hanked Ms. Cedzo.

9:26: 50 AM

SENATOR GARDNER said she found the testinony very interesting,
particularly the nention of Boeing as a subcontractor. She asked
if it was part of the Departnent of Defense work related to Fort
G eel ey.

M5. CEDZO said yes. Boeing cones to the annual industry round
table and states what it needs from new hires. Boeing invested
$60, 000 in Delta because they believe in hiring locals. The goal
is to work with industry partners to keep people conpetitive for
j obs emerging in the area.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -17- February 26, 2014



9:29:35 AM

SENATOR GARDNER said Ms. Cedzo nentioned that Boeing has a brain
trust of engineers. She asked how many engineers are from
Al aska.

M5. CEDZO replied that Boeing does an incredible job of hiring
Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks engineers. She offered to provide
t he nunber.

SENATOR GARDNER t hanked Ms. Cedzo.
CHAI R STEVENS t hanked Ms. Cedzo.

9:30: 24 AM

CARMEN FRANCHI NO, Director of Operations, Anundsen Educati onal
Center, Soldotna, Al aska, provided information about Techni cal
Vocati onal Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients. She shared
i nformati on about the merging of the Amundsen Education Center
with New Frontier Vocational Technical Center in 2008. She
described the makeup of the student body. She related the
content, funding sources, and successes of the program She said
TVEP is working because it strengthens the econony and the
wor kf orce by attracting young Al askans to remain in the state.

CHAIR STEVENS asked how many students Amundsen Educati onal
Center can provi de housing for on canpus.

M5. FRANCHI NO said 12.

9: 33:48 AM
JUDI WALGENBACH, Program Director, Amundsen Educational Center,
Sol dot na, Al aska, provi ded i nformation about Techni ca

Vocational Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients. She spoke
positively about the TVEP grant which the center received in
2008.

9:34: 27 AM

CHARLENE ARNESON, President, Chugach School Board, Chugach,
Al aska, provi ded i nformation about Techni cal Vocat i onal
Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients. She said that many
students have benefitted from the transition to life skills
program begun 18 years ago. She noted a 98 percent graduation
rate. She described a young man from Whittier naned Jake Yin who
was successful and an exanple of what the acadeny can do. She
said she would like to see a network of these training centers.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 18- February 26, 2014



CHAI R STEVENS requested Ms. Arneson send witten naterials. He
asked if the acadeny receives TVEP funding.

M5. ARENESON said no; it receives grant funding. She said it
woul d be receiving sone TVEP funding soon. She invited everyone
to see new buil di ng.

9:40: 36 AM
STEVE BRADSHAW Superintendent, Sitka School District, Sitka,
Al aska, provi ded i nformation about Techni cal Vocat i onal

Education Program (TVEP) fund recipients. He said Sitka has had
a Sout heast Career Training Center since 2008, but has received
no TVEP funding, which has created stress on district funds. He
described various grants to fund the program He said he has
been trying to get TVEP funds since 2008 and is |ooking for a
way to keep the facility open. He shared sonme of the prograns
they can offer.

CHAI R STEVENS noted that his request is for new prograns to be
added to TVEP.

MR. BRADSHAW agreed that Sitka could be conpetitive for funds.
He stressed that they have tried to get TVEP funds. He said he
would Iike to re-apply for the funds.

CHAI R STEVENS thanked M. Bradshaw. He said he would request
sonme changes to the program so others could enter it.

9:47:10 AM

CHARLES EDWARDSON, Workforce Developnment Director, Southern
Sout heast Al aska Technical Education Center, Ketchikan, Al aska
provided information about Techni cal Vocat i onal Educati on
Program (TVEP) fund recipients. He said that about 112 students
went through the program | ast year. He noted that Ketchi kan has

received $3.3 million from the state for the facility and is
seeking TVEP funding. He said the dormitories, which will house
40 students, wll be conmpleted in April. He talked about

| ocation difficulties and the need for a dormtory as the
regional hub. He said he is on the board in Sitka and is working
with Klawock. He noted a partnership with UAS

He stressed that TVEP funding would allow for a reduction in
tuition rates and nake it nore accessible to all Al aska. He said
federal funding is in place for building operations. He voiced
concern with the formul a.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -19- February 26, 2014



He maintained that vocation training efforts in Al aska are
wor ki ng. Unenpl oynent contributions from workers in construction
are increasing and there is an 18 percent increase in demand in
the construction industry. He suggested keeping those ideas in
m nd when considering the fornula.

He said they work with industry. The demand for mning jobs and
shipyard jobs is there. Students from both high schools attend
the facility. He noted he has provided witten information. He
testified in support of SB 139 and wi shed to be included in HB
150.

9:53: 32 AM
CHAI R STEVENS t hanked M. Edwar dson.

MR. EDMUNSON referred to a picture of successful graduates.
SENATOR STEDVAN shared a story.

CHAI R STEVENS sunmarized that it was an interesting discussion
on SB 139. He concluded that there were concerns about the
formula and he asked for opportunities for districts to apply
for grants. He spoke highly of the flexibility of the
university's nodel and the ability to be successful and
conpetitive.

CHAI R STEVENS held SB 139 in comm ttee.
9:55:43 AM
There being no further business to conme before the conmttee,

Chair Stevens adjourned the Senate Education Committee at 9:55
a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 20- February 26, 2014



